
AGENDA – Regular Meeting of Council

Wednesday, August 14, 2024

1:00 PM

Magnetawan Community Centre

Page # OPENING BUSINESS

1.1          Call to Order

1.2          Adoption of the Agenda 

1.3          Disclosure  of  Pecuniary  Interest

3 1.4          Adoption  of  Previous Minutes

STAFF REPORTS, MOTIONS AND DISCUSSION

9 2.1 DRAFT Camp Khalanie Site Plan

21 2.2 Stop Up & Close - Unopened Road Allowance Between CON 1 PT LOTS 26 and CON 1 PT 

LOT 25 - Langford 

40 2.3 Consent Application - Jolic - 5993B Highway 124

81 2.4 Report from Deputy Clerk Erica Kellogg  Encroachment - Echo Beach Cottage Resort Inc

94 2.5 Correspondence MADD Message Yearbook Advertising Donation Request

96 2.6 Request NOAA Award  Burk's Falls Art Club Donation Request

99 2.7 Magnetawan Community Centre Board  Motion Trees Community Centre - Plant Maples

101 2.8 DRAFT By-law to Adopt a Complaints Policy 

MUNICIPAL BOARDS AND COMMITTEE MINUTES

109 3.1 Central Almaguin Planning Board Minutes May 1, 2024

112 3.2 Central Almaguin Planning Board Minutes June 5, 2024

118 3.3 Magnetawan Community Centre Board Minutes July 23, 2024

121 3.4 Magnetawan Cemetery Board Minutes July 31, 2024

123 3.5 Age-Friendly Communities Overview Meeting August 01, 2024

CORRESPONDENCE

138 4.1 Township of Armour - MAHC contribution appreciation 

139 4.2 Muskoka Algonquin Healthcare New phone Number for MAHC Services in Burk's Falls

141 4.3 Northern Ontario Art Association Juried Art Exhibition 

142 4.4 Unsuccessful Outcome Ontario Trillium Foundation for Capital Grant Stream

143 4.5 Notice of Temporary Road Closing - Chapman Drive 

144 4.6 Request for Proposal Roads Need Study 2024

155 4.7 ICYMI Council Highlights July 24, 2024



ACCOUNTS

156 5.1 Accounts in the amount of $893,629.53

PLANNING MEETING

169 6.1 Zoning By-law Amendment Application - Goodjohn  - 1388 Ahmic Lake Road 

BY-LAWS

170 7.1 Complaints Policy 

173 7.2 Klahanie Campers Corporation Site Plan By-law

CLOSED SESSION

In accordance with Section 239(2) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended,   

Council shall proceed into Closed Session in order to address matters pertaining to:
(b)  personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal or local board employees

CONFIRMING BY-LAW AND ADJOURNMENT

184 8.1 Confirm the Proceedings of Council and Adjourn



Page 3 of 184 



Page 4 of 184 



Page 5 of 184 



Page 6 of 184 



Page 7 of 184 



Page 8 of 184 



 
RESOLUTION  NO.   2024– AUGUST 14, 2024  

 

Moved by: ______________________________  

Seconded by: ____________________________ 

 
WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Magnetawan passed By-law No. 2023-19 to rezone the 
lands legally described as PCL 12303 SEC SS; LT 17 CON 3 CROFT; LT 17 CON 4 CROFT EXCEPT M406 & M508; 
MAGNETAWAN to the Commercial Tourist Exception 4 Zone (CT-4); 
 
AND WHEREAS the lands are subject to site plan control to showcase the current organization of the site and provision 
for additional development on the subject lands, which approval is conditional upon the execution and registration on 
title of a Site Plan Agreement; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council for the Municipality of Magnetawan is in favour of the Lakeside Trail entrance as the 
primary entrance; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council for the Municipality of Magnetawan is in favour of the Tranquility Trail entrance being a 
controlled entrance used as the Fire Access Route with keys and/or codes provided to emergency service providers; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council for the Municipality of Magnetawan does not support any additional entrances from either 
Tranquility Trail and/or Lakeside Trail; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED the Council for the Municipality of Magnetawan receives the Site Plan prepared by 
Wayne Simpson & Associates, Planning and Development Consultants, Project: Conceptual Master Plan, Dated 
November 17, 2020, Revision No: Jun 30, 2022, File Name: CAMPKLAHANIECONCEPT.dwg as amended to remove the 
boat/trailer and overflow parking entrance; 
 
AND a By-law will be passed later in the meeting.  
  

 
 

Carried_____  Defeated_____  Deferred_____             __________________________________ 
                Sam Dunnett,  Mayor 
Recorded Vote Called by: _______________________ 
 
Recorded Vote  

Member of Council Yea Nay Absent 

Bishop, Bill    

Hetherington, John    

Hind, Jon    

Kneller, Brad    

Mayor: Dunnett, Sam    
 

 

Page 9 of 184 



 

THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF MAGNETAWAN 

BY-LAW 2024 -  

BEING A BY-LAW TO PROVIDE FOR THE EXECUTION OF A SITE PLAN 

AGREEMENT, AS A CONDITION OF AN APPROVED ZONING BY-LAW 

AMENDMENT, WITH THE OWNERS OF THE LANDS: 

KLAHANIE CAMPERS CORPORATION – PCL 12303 SEC SS; LT 17 CON 3 

CROFT; LT 17 CON 4 CROAFT EXCEPT M406 & M508; MAGNETAWAN,  

being all of the lands described in PIN 52086-0093 (LT), ROLL: (494403000409700). 

 

WHEREAS an application for a Zoning By-law Amendment was approved by the Council 

with the condition of a site plan agreement being entered into and registered on title, pursuant 

to Section 45 (9.1) of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, regarding the aforementioned lands; 

AND WHEREAS Council is satisfied that the proposed development of the lands is 

appropriate and in conformity with the Municipality’s requirements; 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Magnetawan 

hereby enacts as follows:    

1. That the Municipality of Magnetawan enter into a site plan agreement substantially in 

the form attached hereto as “This Agreement.  

 

2. That the Mayor and the Clerk are hereby authorized to execute the Agreement and all 

documents in connection with the Agreement.  

 

3. The Municipality’s solicitor is hereby authorized to register the Agreement against the 

title of the lands to which it applies.   

 

READ A FIRST, SECOND, AND THIRD TIME, passed, signed and the Seal of the 

Corporation affixed hereto, this 14th day of August, 2024  
 

 

 
  

THE CORPORATION OF THE  

MUNICIPALITY OF MAGNETAWAN  

  

 __________________________________  

    Mayor  
  

__________________________________ 

   CAO/Clerk  

Page 10 of 184 



SITE PLAN AGREEMENT 

       

THIS AGREEMENT made between: 

 

KLAHANIE CAMPERS CORPORATION 

 hereinafter called the "Owner" 

 OF THE FIRST PART 

- AND - 

 

THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF MAGNETAWAN 

 hereinafter called the "Municipality" 

 OF THE SECOND PART 

 

WHEREAS the lands affected by this Agreement are the lands described in paragraph 1.1 (the "subject 

lands"); 

AND WHEREAS the subject lands have been re-zoned to the Commercial Tourist Exception 4 Zone 

(CT-4) and are subject to site plan control;  

AND WHEREAS the Municipality has approved the site plan showing the current organization of the site 

and provision for additional development on the subject lands, which approval is conditional upon the 

execution and registration of a site plan agreement; 

NOW THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH that in consideration of the premises and for 

other good and valuable consideration (the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged), the parties hereto 

covenant and agree with one another as follows: 

 

1. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 

 

1.1 DESCRIPTION OF LANDS - See Schedule “A” (hereinafter referenced as “the subject lands”). 

 

1.2 CONFORMITY WITH AGREEMENT - The Owner covenants and agrees that all development of 

and work upon  the subject lands shall be in compliance with: 

a) the provisions of this Agreement;  

b) the Approved Plan(s) referenced in Schedule "B";    

c) all additional Schedules hereto attached; 

d) all applicable Municipal By-laws and all Provincial Legislation. 

  

DRAFT

Page 11 of 184 



1.3 RELIANCE UPON REPRESENTATIONS - The Owner acknowledges that: 

 

a) it has made representations to the Municipality that it will maintain the subject lands in 

accordance with the Approved Plans and will not alter the development on the lands 

unless such alterations accord with the Approved Plans;  

b) the Municipality has entered into this Agreement in reliance upon these representations. 

 

1.4 SCHEDULES ATTACHED - The following schedules are attached to this Agreement and form 

part of this Agreement: 

 

Schedule "A"- Legal Description 

Schedule "B" - Approved Plan(s) 

 

2. MODIFICATION OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

 

2.1 There shall be no changes in the Schedules attached hereto, or to any plans, reports, 

specifications etc. filed and accepted by the Municipality concerning the subject lands unless 

such changes have been first submitted to, and accepted by, the Municipal Chief Administrative 

Officer (“C.A.O.”), or other authorized representative. 

 

3. CONDITIONS PRIOR TO EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT BY THE MUNICIPALITY  

 

3.1 Prior to the execution of this Agreement by the Municipality, the Owner shall: 

 

a) Taxes - have paid all municipal tax bills issued and outstanding on the said lands, 

   

b) Land Ownership - be the registered owner in fee simple of the lands described in section 

1.1, 

 

c)  Postponements Mortgage/Charge - have filed with the municipal solicitor, at the discretion 

of the Municipality, a postponement of any Mortgage/Charge in favour of this agreement. 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT

Page 12 of 184 



4. EFFECT OF SITE PLAN SHOWING PORTION OF SUBJECT LANDS 

 

4.1 The Owner acknowledges that the Municipality has not required the Owner to produce a site plan 

showing all of the Owner’s lands.  The Owner agrees and acknowledges that development of 

those portions of the land not shown on the site plan may require the Owner to apply for and 

obtain site plan approval.   The Owner agrees that it will not seek any building permits for the 

foregoing until such time as it has applied for and received site plan approval or it has been 

confirmed by the Municipality that site plan approval is not required. 

  

5. INTERNAL WORKS 

 

5.1 Development in Accordance with Approved Plans - The Owner will maintain at its expense all 

internal site services/works on the subject lands as shown in the Approved Plans in accordance 

with all applicable federal, provincial and municipal standards, specifications and/or regulations.  

 

5.2 Maintenance - The Owner agrees that there shall be no further development of the lands except 

in accordance with the Municipality’s site plan control by-law, the site plan approval and this 

agreement.   

 

5.3  Applicability of Other Municipal By-laws - the Owner acknowledges that notwithstanding the 

issuance of site plan approval, any alteration of the shoreline including the conduct of any work 

in furtherance of this agreement shall be conducted in accordance with any federal/provincial 

laws or municipal by-law affecting or regulating the shoreline area.   

 

5.4  Private Sanitary Sewage System and Drinking Water System – The Owner acknowledges and 

agrees that it is responsible for the maintenance and operation of the private sanitary sewage 

collection and disposal system and private drinking water supply and distribution system and for 

complying with all applicable law related thereto.  The Owner acknowledges that any further 

development upon the subject lands may oblige the Owner to obtain updated, amended or new 

approvals (e.g. an Environmental Compliance Approval) for such systems from the Ministry of 

Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP) or such other applicable approval authority. 

 

5.5  Emergency Access Entrance  - The Owner agrees that the northerly entrance to the subject lands 

(Tranquility Trail) shall be maintained as an emergency access point and is not intended for 

regular camp related traffic.  The Owner agrees to maintain controlled access and should the 

Owner wish to lock such entrance it shall provide keys or access codes to the emergency service 

providers.  

 

5.6  Fire Routes – The Owner acknowledges and agrees to maintain the Fire Access Route identified 

on the Site Plan in a condition that provides suitable access for emergency services vehicles to 

all sites and in accordance with applicable Provincial Legislation and associated regulations.  

DRAFT

Page 13 of 184 



 

5.7  Entrance Permits – The Owner acknowledges and agrees that it is required to apply for and 

obtain an entrance permit for the second entrance to/from Lakeside Trail for the purpose of 

accessing the Boat Trailer and Overflow Parking Area identified on the Site Plan. 

 

6. GENERAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

 

6.1 The Owner shall ensure that all construction activities shall not commence until Permits are 

issued by the Chief Building Official where applicable.  

 

6.2 The Owner covenants and agrees to arrange for private snow removal from the subject lands.  

The Owner shall, on a continuous basis, ensure that snow is regularly removed from the site 

when the designated snow storage areas as shown on the Site Plans (if any) are full.  The Owner 

shall not store or provide for snow storage in any area immediately adjacent to a municipal street.    

  

6.3 The Owner covenants and agrees to enter into a contract with a garbage collection contractor for 

garbage collection upon the said lands if required by the waste authority.    Such garbage shall 

be deposited and stored in the area(s) shown (if applicable) on the Approved Plans.  The Owner 

specifically releases and forever discharges the Municipality from any obligation of providing 

garbage collection services to the subject lands. 

  

7. EMERGENCY SITUATION 

 

7.1 If as a result of any work undertaken by the Owner, or its servants, or agents, there exists in the 

opinion of the Municipality’s Public Works Superintendent, an emergency situation which requires 

immediate attention to avoid damage to public property or services owned by the Municipality, 

such work may be done immediately by the Municipal Engineer at the expense of the Owner, but 

notice shall be given to the Owner at the earliest possible time. 

 

8. REGISTRATION OF AGREEMENT AND OTHER DOCUMENTS 

 

8.1 The parties hereto consent to the registration of this Agreement by the Municipality upon the title 

of the said lands, which registration shall be included as a legal expense to the Owner.  The 

Owner further agrees that it will execute such further and other documents, consents, or 

applications as may be reasonably required by the solicitor for the Municipality for the purpose 

of any registration against the said lands, or for the purpose of giving effect to the provisions 

required under this Development Agreement.   

 

 

DRAFT

Page 14 of 184 



9.  EXPENSES TO BE PAID BY OWNER 

 

9.1 Every provision of this Agreement by which the Owner is obliged in any way shall be deemed to 

include the words "at the expense of the Owner" unless the context otherwise requires.    

 

10. ATTACHED SCHEDULES 

 

10.1 It is agreed that everything included in this Agreement and the Schedules attached thereto, 

together with all engineering drawings, material and undertakings filed by the Owner and 

accepted by the Municipality shall be included in and form part of this Agreement. 

 

11. RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS 

 

11.1 The Owner agrees that the covenants, agreements and obligations agreed to in this Agreement 

are and shall be of the same force and effect to all intents and purposes as a covenant, the 

burden of which shall run with the said lands and each and every part of this Agreement shall 

extend to, and be binding upon and enure to the benefit of each and all of the heirs, executors, 

administrators, successors-in-title, and assigns of the parties hereto respectively.   

 

11.2 The covenants, agreements and obligations agreed to in this Agreement are declared to be 

appurtenant to and for the benefit of the lands of the Municipality abutting the said lands. 

 

12. INDEMNIFICATION FROM LIABILITY AND RELEASE 

 

12.1 The Owner covenants and agrees with the Municipality, on behalf of itself, its successors and 

assigns, to indemnify and save harmless the Municipality from any and all actions, suits, claims 

and demands whatsoever which may arise either directly or indirectly by reason of any work 

performed by the Owner or on his behalf in connection with the carrying out of the provisions of 

this Agreement. 

 

13.  NOTICES TO PARTIES 

 

13.1  Any Notice to be given by any party under this Agreement may be given by: 

a) personal service on the parties hereto, or 

b) prepaid first class mail addressed to the other party at their last known address and which 

shall be deemed to have been received 72 hours after mailing. 

For the purposes of the foregoing, the addresses for the parties to this Agreement are as follows: 

DRAFT

Page 15 of 184 



  

 Owner:   1680 Gordon Point Road 

   Magnetawan, Ontario P0A 1P0  

 

 Municipality:  4304 Hwy # 520 P.O. Box 70 

   Magnetawan, Ontario P0A 1P0   

Attention: Chief Administrative Officer 

 

14. TIME OF THE ESSENCE 

 

14.1  The parties hereto agree that time shall be of the essence in this Agreement.   

  

15. ESTOPPEL OF OWNER 

 

15.1 The Owner agrees to not call into question directly or indirectly in any proceeding whatsoever, in 

law or in equity, or before any administrative tribunal, the right of the Municipality to enter into 

this Agreement and to enforce each and every term, covenant and condition herein contained 

and this Agreement may be pleaded as an estoppel against the Owner in any such proceedings. 

16.  INTERPRETATION 

16.1 It is hereby agreed that in construing these presents the word "Owner" and the personal pronoun 

"he" or "his" relating thereto and used therewith, shall be read and construed as "Owner" and 

"his", "hers", "its" or "their" respectively as the number and gender of the party or parties referred 

to in each case requires and the number of the verb agreeing therewith shall be so construed as 

agreeing with the said word or pronoun so substituted.   

 

 

Remainder of Page Intentionally Blank  

DRAFT

Page 16 of 184 



 

16.2 And that all covenants, liabilities and obligations entered into and imposed hereunder upon the 

Owner shall be equally binding upon his, her, its or their heirs, executors, administrators and 

assigns, or successors and assigns as the case may be, and that all such covenants and liabilities 

and obligations shall be joint and several.   

 

THIS AGREEMENT shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon each of the parties hereto and 

their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns.    

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the following dates:    

 

By Klahanie Campers Corporation on the              day of                        , 2024. 

 

       

                                                                

      Name:   

      Title:  

 

       I have the authority to bind the Corporation. 

 

 

By The Corporation of the Municipality of Magnetawan on the            day of                , 2024. 

 

      THE CORPORATION OF THE 

      MUNICIPALITY OF MAGNETAWAN 

Per:                                                       c/s 

             Name: Sam Dunnett 

             Title:  Mayor 

      Per:                                                       c/s 

             Name: Kerstin Vroom 

             Title:  CAO/Clerk 

 

      We have the authority to bind the Corporation.  

DRAFT

Page 17 of 184 



 

 SCHEDULE "A" 

 

THIS IS SCHEDULE "A" TO THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CORPORATION 

OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF MAGNETAWAN AND KLAHANIE CAMPERS CORPORATION  
 

 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF LANDS 

 

PCL 12303 SEC SS; LT 17 CON 3 CROFT; LT 17 CON 4 CROFT EXCEPT M406 & M508; 

MAGNETAWAN, being all of the lands described in PIN 52086-0093(LT).    

     

DRAFT

Page 18 of 184 



 SCHEDULE "B"   

 

THIS IS SCHEDULE "B" TO THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CORPORATION 

OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF MAGNETAWAN AND KLAHANIE CAMPERS CORPORATION 
 

  

THE APPROVED PLAN(S) 

 

 

The Plan prepared by Wayne Simpson & Associates, Planning and Development Consultants, Project: 

Conceptual Master Plan, Dated November 17, 2020, Revision No: Jun 30, 2022, File Name: 

CAMPKLAHANIECONCEPT.dwg. 

 

 

DRAFT

Page 19 of 184 



Page 20 of 184 



Page 21 of 184 



Page 22 of 184 



Page 23 of 184 



Page 24 of 184 



Page 25 of 184 



Page 26 of 184 



Page 27 of 184 



Page 28 of 184 



Page 29 of 184 



Page 30 of 184 



Page 31 of 184 



Page 32 of 184 



Page 33 of 184 



Page 34 of 184 



Page 35 of 184 



Page 36 of 184 



Page 37 of 184 



Page 38 of 184 



Page 39 of 184 



Page 40 of 184 



Page 41 of 184 



Page 42 of 184 



Page 43 of 184 



Page 44 of 184 



Page 45 of 184 



Page 46 of 184 



Page 47 of 184 



Page 48 of 184 



Page 49 of 184 



Page 50 of 184 



Page 51 of 184 



Page 52 of 184 



Page 53 of 184 



Page 54 of 184 



Page 55 of 184 



Page 56 of 184 



Page 57 of 184 



Page 58 of 184 



Page 59 of 184 



Page 60 of 184 



Page 61 of 184 



Page 62 of 184 



Page 63 of 184 



Page 64 of 184 



Page 65 of 184 



Page 66 of 184 



Page 67 of 184 



Page 68 of 184 



Page 69 of 184 



Page 70 of 184 



Page 71 of 184 



Page 72 of 184 



Page 73 of 184 



Page 74 of 184 



Page 75 of 184 



Page 76 of 184 



Page 77 of 184 



Page 78 of 184 



Page 79 of 184 



Page 80 of 184 



Page 81 of 184 



Page 82 of 184 



Page 83 of 184 



Page 84 of 184 



Page 85 of 184 



Page 86 of 184 



Page 87 of 184 



Page 88 of 184 



Page 89 of 184 



Page 90 of 184 



Page 91 of 184 



Page 92 of 184 



Page 93 of 184 



Page 94 of 184 



Page 95 of 184 



Page 96 of 184 



Page 97 of 184 



Page 98 of 184 



Page 99 of 184 



Page 100 of 184 



Page 101 of 184 



 
 

Schedule “A” By-law 2024-   
COMPLAINTS POLICY 

 
PURPOSE 
This policy is intended to enable the Municipality of Magnetawan to promptly and effectively address 
program and service delivery concerns raised by members of the public. This policy will assist the 
Municipality in providing excellent service to the public, and it will contribute to continuous improvement 
of Municipal operations and service standards.  
 
The Municipality strives to reduce customer dissatisfaction by: 

• providing a timely and accurate response to complaints; and 

• using complaints as an opportunity to improve program and service delivery issues 
 
DEFINITION 
A complaint is an expression of dissatisfaction related to a Municipal program, service, facility, or staff 
member, where a member of the public believes that the Municipality has not provided a service 
experience to the customer’s satisfaction. at the point of service delivery, and where a response or 
resolution is expected. 
 
The Municipality’s definition of a complaint does not include those complaints that are anonymous in 
nature and/or happened more than six (6) weeks prior to the incident. In order to resolve an issue, the 
Municipality requires the complainant’s contact information. Personal information will be maintained as 
required under the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. 
 
A complaint is distinct from: 

• A request for service made on behalf of a citizen for a specific service, or to notify the Municipality 
that a scheduled service was not provided on time as stated; 

• A general inquiry or specific request for information regarding a municipal service; 

• A suggestion or idea submitted by a member of the public with the aim of improving services, 
programs, products, or processes; or 

• An expression of approval or compliment for a municipal staff, program, product or process. 
 
This policy is not for complaints regarding: 

• Non-municipal services; 

• Issues addressed by legislation, or an existing municipal by-law, policy, or procedure; 

• A decision of Council or a decision of a Committee and/or Board of Council; 

• Internal employee complaints; or 

• Matters that are handled by tribunals, courts of law, quasi-judicial boards, etc. 
 

Page 102 of 184 



FRONTLINE RESOLUTION 
It is the responsibility of the complainant to attempt to resolve concerns by dealing with the Municipality 
and/or the Municipal employee(s) directly involved with the issue where appropriate. 
 
It is the responsibility of all Municipal employees to attempt to resolve issues or concerns before they 
become complaints and to identify opportunities to improve Municipal services where deficiencies are 
noted. 
 
PROCESS FOR FILING A COMPLAINT 
 
1.  Filing the Complaint 
Where a frontline resolution cannot be achieved, complaints will be submitted to the CAO/Clerk or 
designate on the prescribed form within 6 weeks of the alleged incident.   All information on the form must 
be completed. 
 
2.  Receipt and Acknowledgement 
The CAO/Clerk or designate will log the complaint within seven (7) business days and will acknowledge 
receipt of same to the complainant. 
 
3.  Investigation 
The CAO/Clerk or designate will conduct an investigation into the nature of the complaint. 
 
If a complaint is made against the CAO/Clerk, it will be put on the next incamera session for Council’s 
review and direction.  

 
The designated investigator will review the issues identified by the complainant, and in so doing they may: 

• Review relevant Municipal and provincial legislation; 

• Review relevant Municipal policies and procedures and any existing file documents; 

• Interview employees or members of the public involved in the issue;  

• Identify actions that may be taken to address the complaint or to improve municipal operations; and 

• Provide a resolution report to the CAO/Clerk. 
 
4.  Decision 
Within sixty (60) calendar days of receipt of a complaint, the CAO/Clerk or designated investigator will 
provide a response in writing to the complainant, which will include: 

• Whether or not the complaint was substantiated; 

• If the complaint is not substantiated, the reason for the decision; and 

• Any actions that the Municipality has or will take as a result of the complaint. 
 
If the CAO/Clerk or designated investigator is unable to provide a full response within sixty (60) days, they 
will notify the complainant of the delay and provide an estimate of when a response will be provided. 
 
5.  Record 
The CAO/Clerk will file a copy of the complaint and response. Such record will be maintained in accordance 
with the Municipal Record Retention By-law. If a Municipal employee was the subject of the complaint, a 
copy of the record will be retained in their personnel file.  

Page 103 of 184 



Page 104 of 184 



Page 105 of 184 



Page 106 of 184 



Page 107 of 184 



Page 108 of 184 



Page 109 of 184 



Page 110 of 184 



Page 111 of 184 



Page 112 of 184 



Page 113 of 184 



Page 114 of 184 



Page 115 of 184 



Page 116 of 184 



Page 117 of 184 



Page 118 of 184 



Page 119 of 184 



Page 120 of 184 



Page 121 of 184 



Page 122 of 184 



Page 123 of 184 



Page 124 of 184 



Page 125 of 184 



Page 126 of 184 



Page 127 of 184 



Page 128 of 184 



Page 129 of 184 



Page 130 of 184 



Page 131 of 184 



Page 132 of 184 



Page 133 of 184 



Page 134 of 184 



Page 135 of 184 



Page 136 of 184 



Page 137 of 184 



Page 138 of 184 



Page 139 of 184 



Page 140 of 184 



Page 141 of 184 



Page 142 of 184 



Page 143 of 184 



Page 144 of 184 



Page 145 of 184 



Page 146 of 184 



Page 147 of 184 



Page 148 of 184 



Page 149 of 184 



Page 150 of 184 



Page 151 of 184 



Page 152 of 184 



Page 153 of 184 



Page 154 of 184 



Page 155 of 184 



Page 156 of 184 



Page 157 of 184 



Page 158 of 184 



Page 159 of 184 



Page 160 of 184 



Page 161 of 184 



Page 162 of 184 



Page 163 of 184 



Page 164 of 184 



Page 165 of 184 



Page 166 of 184 

Donation to NOAA Juried Exhibit



Page 167 of 184 



Page 168 of 184 



Page 169 of 184 



Page 170 of 184 



 
 

Schedule “A” By-law 2024-   
COMPLAINTS POLICY 

 
PURPOSE 
This policy is intended to enable the Municipality of Magnetawan to promptly and effectively address 
program and service delivery concerns raised by members of the public. This policy will assist the 
Municipality in providing excellent service to the public, and it will contribute to continuous improvement 
of Municipal operations and service standards.  
 
The Municipality strives to reduce customer dissatisfaction by: 

• providing a timely and accurate response to complaints; and 

• using complaints as an opportunity to improve program and service delivery issues 
 
DEFINITION 
A complaint is an expression of dissatisfaction related to a Municipal program, service, facility, or staff 
member, where a member of the public believes that the Municipality has not provided a service 
experience to the customer’s satisfaction.  
 
The Municipality’s definition of a complaint does not include those complaints that are anonymous in 
nature and/or happened more than six (6) weeks prior to the incident. In order to resolve an issue, the 
Municipality requires the complainant’s contact information. Personal information will be maintained as 
required under the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. 
 
A complaint is distinct from: 

• A request for service made on behalf of a citizen for a specific service, or to notify the Municipality 
that a scheduled service was not provided on time as stated; 

• A general inquiry or specific request for information regarding a municipal service; 

• A suggestion or idea submitted by a member of the public with the aim of improving services, 
programs, products, or processes; or 

• An expression of approval or compliment for a municipal staff, program, product or process. 
 
This policy is not for complaints regarding: 

• Non-municipal services; 

• Issues addressed by legislation, or an existing municipal by-law, policy, or procedure; 

• A decision of Council or a decision of a Committee and/or Board of Council; 

• Internal employee complaints; or 

• Matters that are handled by tribunals, courts of law, quasi-judicial boards, etc. 
 
 

Page 171 of 184 



FRONTLINE RESOLUTION 
It is the responsibility of the complainant to attempt to resolve concerns by dealing with the Municipality 
and/or the Municipal employee(s) directly involved with the issue where appropriate. 
 
It is the responsibility of all Municipal employees to attempt to resolve issues or concerns before they 
become complaints and to identify opportunities to improve Municipal services where deficiencies are 
noted. 
 
PROCESS FOR FILING A COMPLAINT 
 
1.  Filing the Complaint 
Where a frontline resolution cannot be achieved, complaints will be submitted to the CAO/Clerk or 
designate on the prescribed form within 6 weeks of the alleged incident.   All information on the form must 
be completed. 
 
2.  Receipt and Acknowledgement 
The CAO/Clerk or designate will log the complaint within seven (7) business days and will acknowledge 
receipt of same to the complainant. 
 
3.  Investigation 
The CAO/Clerk or designate will conduct an investigation into the nature of the complaint. 
 
If a complaint is made against the CAO/Clerk, it will be put on the next incamera session for Council’s 
review and direction.  

 
The designated investigator will review the issues identified by the complainant, and in so doing they may: 

• Review relevant Municipal and provincial legislation; 

• Review relevant Municipal policies and procedures and any existing file documents; 

• Interview employees or members of the public involved in the issue;  

• Identify actions that may be taken to address the complaint or to improve municipal operations; and 

• Provide a resolution report to the CAO/Clerk. 
 
4.  Decision 
Within sixty (60) calendar days of receipt of a complaint, the CAO/Clerk or designated investigator will 
provide a response in writing to the complainant, which will include: 

• Whether or not the complaint was substantiated; 

• If the complaint is not substantiated, the reason for the decision; and 

• Any actions that the Municipality has or will take as a result of the complaint. 
 
If the CAO/Clerk or designated investigator is unable to provide a full response within sixty (60) days, they 
will notify the complainant of the delay and provide an estimate of when a response will be provided. 
 
5.  Record 
The CAO/Clerk will file a copy of the complaint and response. Such record will be maintained in accordance 
with the Municipal Record Retention By-law. If a Municipal employee was the subject of the complaint, a 
copy of the record will be retained in their personnel file.  

Page 172 of 184 



 

THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF MAGNETAWAN 

BY-LAW 2024 -  

BEING A BY-LAW TO PROVIDE FOR THE EXECUTION OF A SITE PLAN 

AGREEMENT, AS A CONDITION OF AN APPROVED ZONING BY-LAW 

AMENDMENT, WITH THE OWNERS OF THE LANDS: 

KLAHANIE CAMPERS CORPORATION – PCL 12303 SEC SS; LT 17 CON 3 

CROFT; LT 17 CON 4 CROAFT EXCEPT M406 & M508; MAGNETAWAN,  

being all of the lands described in PIN 52086-0093 (LT), ROLL: (494403000409700). 

 

WHEREAS an application for a Zoning By-law Amendment was approved by the Council 

with the condition of a site plan agreement being entered into and registered on title, pursuant 

to Section 45 (9.1) of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, regarding the aforementioned lands; 

AND WHEREAS Council is satisfied that the proposed development of the lands is 

appropriate and in conformity with the Municipality’s requirements; 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Magnetawan 

hereby enacts as follows:    

1. That the Municipality of Magnetawan enter into a site plan agreement substantially in 

the form attached hereto as “This Agreement.  

 

2. That the Mayor and the Clerk are hereby authorized to execute the Agreement and all 

documents in connection with the Agreement.  

 

3. The Municipality’s solicitor is hereby authorized to register the Agreement against the 

title of the lands to which it applies.   

 

READ A FIRST, SECOND, AND THIRD TIME, passed, signed and the Seal of the 

Corporation affixed hereto, this 14th day of August, 2024  
 

 

 
  

THE CORPORATION OF THE  

MUNICIPALITY OF MAGNETAWAN  

  

 __________________________________  

    Mayor  
  

__________________________________ 

   CAO/Clerk  

Page 173 of 184 



SITE PLAN AGREEMENT 

       

THIS AGREEMENT made between: 

 

KLAHANIE CAMPERS CORPORATION 

 hereinafter called the "Owner" 

 OF THE FIRST PART 

- AND - 

 

THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF MAGNETAWAN 

 hereinafter called the "Municipality" 

 OF THE SECOND PART 

 

WHEREAS the lands affected by this Agreement are the lands described in paragraph 1.1 (the "subject 

lands"); 

AND WHEREAS the subject lands have been re-zoned to the Commercial Tourist Exception 4 Zone 

(CT-4) and are subject to site plan control;  

AND WHEREAS the Municipality has approved the site plan showing the current organization of the site 

and provision for additional development on the subject lands, which approval is conditional upon the 

execution and registration of a site plan agreement; 

NOW THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH that in consideration of the premises and for 

other good and valuable consideration (the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged), the parties hereto 

covenant and agree with one another as follows: 

 

1. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 

 

1.1 DESCRIPTION OF LANDS - See Schedule “A” (hereinafter referenced as “the subject lands”). 

 

1.2 CONFORMITY WITH AGREEMENT - The Owner covenants and agrees that all development of 

and work upon  the subject lands shall be in compliance with: 

a) the provisions of this Agreement;  

b) the Approved Plan(s) referenced in Schedule "B";    

c) all additional Schedules hereto attached; 

d) all applicable Municipal By-laws and all Provincial Legislation. 

  

Page 174 of 184 



1.3 RELIANCE UPON REPRESENTATIONS - The Owner acknowledges that: 

 

a) it has made representations to the Municipality that it will maintain the subject lands in 

accordance with the Approved Plans and will not alter the development on the lands 

unless such alterations accord with the Approved Plans;  

b) the Municipality has entered into this Agreement in reliance upon these representations. 

 

1.4 SCHEDULES ATTACHED - The following schedules are attached to this Agreement and form 

part of this Agreement: 

 

Schedule "A"- Legal Description 

Schedule "B" - Approved Plan(s) 

 

2. MODIFICATION OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

 

2.1 There shall be no changes in the Schedules attached hereto, or to any plans, reports, 

specifications etc. filed and accepted by the Municipality concerning the subject lands unless 

such changes have been first submitted to, and accepted by, the Municipal Chief Administrative 

Officer (“C.A.O.”), or other authorized representative. 

 

3. CONDITIONS PRIOR TO EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT BY THE MUNICIPALITY  

 

3.1 Prior to the execution of this Agreement by the Municipality, the Owner shall: 

 

a) Taxes - have paid all municipal tax bills issued and outstanding on the said lands, 

   

b) Land Ownership - be the registered owner in fee simple of the lands described in section 

1.1, 

 

c)  Postponements Mortgage/Charge - have filed with the municipal solicitor, at the discretion 

of the Municipality, a postponement of any Mortgage/Charge in favour of this agreement. 

 

 

 

 

Page 175 of 184 



4. EFFECT OF SITE PLAN SHOWING PORTION OF SUBJECT LANDS 

 

4.1 The Owner acknowledges that the Municipality has not required the Owner to produce a site plan 

showing all of the Owner’s lands.  The Owner agrees and acknowledges that development of 

those portions of the land not shown on the site plan may require the Owner to apply for and 

obtain site plan approval.   The Owner agrees that it will not seek any building permits for the 

foregoing until such time as it has applied for and received site plan approval or it has been 

confirmed by the Municipality that site plan approval is not required. 

  

5. INTERNAL WORKS 

 

5.1 Development in Accordance with Approved Plans - The Owner will maintain at its expense all 

internal site services/works on the subject lands as shown in the Approved Plans in accordance 

with all applicable federal, provincial and municipal standards, specifications and/or regulations.  

 

5.2 Maintenance - The Owner agrees that there shall be no further development of the lands except 

in accordance with the Municipality’s site plan control by-law, the site plan approval and this 

agreement.   

 

5.3  Applicability of Other Municipal By-laws - the Owner acknowledges that notwithstanding the 

issuance of site plan approval, any alteration of the shoreline including the conduct of any work 

in furtherance of this agreement shall be conducted in accordance with any federal/provincial 

laws or municipal by-law affecting or regulating the shoreline area.   

 

5.4  Private Sanitary Sewage System and Drinking Water System – The Owner acknowledges and 

agrees that it is responsible for the maintenance and operation of the private sanitary sewage 

collection and disposal system and private drinking water supply and distribution system and for 

complying with all applicable law related thereto.  The Owner acknowledges that any further 

development upon the subject lands may oblige the Owner to obtain updated, amended or new 

approvals (e.g. an Environmental Compliance Approval) for such systems from the Ministry of 

Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP) or such other applicable approval authority. 

 

5.5  Emergency Access Entrance  - The Owner agrees that the northerly entrance to the subject lands 

(Tranquility Trail) shall be maintained as an emergency access point and is not intended for 

regular camp related traffic.  The Owner agrees to maintain controlled access and should the 

Owner wish to lock such entrance it shall provide keys or access codes to the emergency service 

providers.  

 

5.6  Fire Routes – The Owner acknowledges and agrees to maintain the Fire Access Route identified 

on the Site Plan in a condition that provides suitable access for emergency services vehicles to 

all sites and in accordance with applicable Provincial Legislation and associated regulations.  

Page 176 of 184 



 

5.7  Entrance Permits – The Owner acknowledges and agrees that it is required to apply for and 

obtain an entrance permit for the second entrance to/from Lakeside Trail for the purpose of 

accessing the Boat Trailer and Overflow Parking Area identified on the Site Plan. 

 

6. GENERAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

 

6.1 The Owner shall ensure that all construction activities shall not commence until Permits are 

issued by the Chief Building Official where applicable.  

 

6.2 The Owner covenants and agrees to arrange for private snow removal from the subject lands.  

The Owner shall, on a continuous basis, ensure that snow is regularly removed from the site 

when the designated snow storage areas as shown on the Site Plans (if any) are full.  The Owner 

shall not store or provide for snow storage in any area immediately adjacent to a municipal street.    

  

6.3 The Owner covenants and agrees to enter into a contract with a garbage collection contractor for 

garbage collection upon the said lands if required by the waste authority.    Such garbage shall 

be deposited and stored in the area(s) shown (if applicable) on the Approved Plans.  The Owner 

specifically releases and forever discharges the Municipality from any obligation of providing 

garbage collection services to the subject lands. 

  

7. EMERGENCY SITUATION 

 

7.1 If as a result of any work undertaken by the Owner, or its servants, or agents, there exists in the 

opinion of the Municipality’s Public Works Superintendent, an emergency situation which requires 

immediate attention to avoid damage to public property or services owned by the Municipality, 

such work may be done immediately by the Municipal Engineer at the expense of the Owner, but 

notice shall be given to the Owner at the earliest possible time. 

 

8. REGISTRATION OF AGREEMENT AND OTHER DOCUMENTS 

 

8.1 The parties hereto consent to the registration of this Agreement by the Municipality upon the title 

of the said lands, which registration shall be included as a legal expense to the Owner.  The 

Owner further agrees that it will execute such further and other documents, consents, or 

applications as may be reasonably required by the solicitor for the Municipality for the purpose 

of any registration against the said lands, or for the purpose of giving effect to the provisions 

required under this Development Agreement.   

 

 

Page 177 of 184 



9.  EXPENSES TO BE PAID BY OWNER 

 

9.1 Every provision of this Agreement by which the Owner is obliged in any way shall be deemed to 

include the words "at the expense of the Owner" unless the context otherwise requires.    

 

10. ATTACHED SCHEDULES 

 

10.1 It is agreed that everything included in this Agreement and the Schedules attached thereto, 

together with all engineering drawings, material and undertakings filed by the Owner and 

accepted by the Municipality shall be included in and form part of this Agreement. 

 

11. RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS 

 

11.1 The Owner agrees that the covenants, agreements and obligations agreed to in this Agreement 

are and shall be of the same force and effect to all intents and purposes as a covenant, the 

burden of which shall run with the said lands and each and every part of this Agreement shall 

extend to, and be binding upon and enure to the benefit of each and all of the heirs, executors, 

administrators, successors-in-title, and assigns of the parties hereto respectively.   

 

11.2 The covenants, agreements and obligations agreed to in this Agreement are declared to be 

appurtenant to and for the benefit of the lands of the Municipality abutting the said lands. 

 

12. INDEMNIFICATION FROM LIABILITY AND RELEASE 

 

12.1 The Owner covenants and agrees with the Municipality, on behalf of itself, its successors and 

assigns, to indemnify and save harmless the Municipality from any and all actions, suits, claims 

and demands whatsoever which may arise either directly or indirectly by reason of any work 

performed by the Owner or on his behalf in connection with the carrying out of the provisions of 

this Agreement. 

 

13.  NOTICES TO PARTIES 

 

13.1  Any Notice to be given by any party under this Agreement may be given by: 

a) personal service on the parties hereto, or 

b) prepaid first class mail addressed to the other party at their last known address and which 

shall be deemed to have been received 72 hours after mailing. 

For the purposes of the foregoing, the addresses for the parties to this Agreement are as follows: 

Page 178 of 184 



  

 Owner:   1680 Gordon Point Road 

   Magnetawan, Ontario P0A 1P0  

 

 Municipality:  4304 Hwy # 520 P.O. Box 70 

   Magnetawan, Ontario P0A 1P0   

Attention: Chief Administrative Officer 

 

14. TIME OF THE ESSENCE 

 

14.1  The parties hereto agree that time shall be of the essence in this Agreement.   

  

15. ESTOPPEL OF OWNER 

 

15.1 The Owner agrees to not call into question directly or indirectly in any proceeding whatsoever, in 

law or in equity, or before any administrative tribunal, the right of the Municipality to enter into 

this Agreement and to enforce each and every term, covenant and condition herein contained 

and this Agreement may be pleaded as an estoppel against the Owner in any such proceedings. 

16.  INTERPRETATION 

16.1 It is hereby agreed that in construing these presents the word "Owner" and the personal pronoun 

"he" or "his" relating thereto and used therewith, shall be read and construed as "Owner" and 

"his", "hers", "its" or "their" respectively as the number and gender of the party or parties referred 

to in each case requires and the number of the verb agreeing therewith shall be so construed as 

agreeing with the said word or pronoun so substituted.   

 

 

Remainder of Page Intentionally Blank  

Page 179 of 184 



 

16.2 And that all covenants, liabilities and obligations entered into and imposed hereunder upon the 

Owner shall be equally binding upon his, her, its or their heirs, executors, administrators and 

assigns, or successors and assigns as the case may be, and that all such covenants and liabilities 

and obligations shall be joint and several.   

 

THIS AGREEMENT shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon each of the parties hereto and 

their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns.    

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the following dates:    

 

By Klahanie Campers Corporation on the              day of                        , 2024. 

 

       

                                                                

      Name:   

      Title:  

 

       I have the authority to bind the Corporation. 

 

 

By The Corporation of the Municipality of Magnetawan on the            day of                , 2024. 

 

      THE CORPORATION OF THE 

      MUNICIPALITY OF MAGNETAWAN 

Per:                                                       c/s 

             Name: Sam Dunnett 

             Title:  Mayor 

      Per:                                                       c/s 

             Name: Kerstin Vroom 

             Title:  CAO/Clerk 

 

      We have the authority to bind the Corporation.  

Page 180 of 184 



 

 SCHEDULE "A" 

 

THIS IS SCHEDULE "A" TO THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CORPORATION 

OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF MAGNETAWAN AND KLAHANIE CAMPERS CORPORATION  
 

 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF LANDS 

 

PCL 12303 SEC SS; LT 17 CON 3 CROFT; LT 17 CON 4 CROFT EXCEPT M406 & M508; 

MAGNETAWAN, being all of the lands described in PIN 52086-0093(LT).    

     

Page 181 of 184 



 SCHEDULE "B"   

 

THIS IS SCHEDULE "B" TO THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CORPORATION 

OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF MAGNETAWAN AND KLAHANIE CAMPERS CORPORATION 
 

  

THE APPROVED PLAN(S) 

 

 

The Plan prepared by Wayne Simpson & Associates, Planning and Development Consultants, Project: 

Conceptual Master Plan, Dated November 17, 2020, Revision No: Jun 30, 2022, File Name: 

CAMPKLAHANIECONCEPT.dwg. 

 

 

Page 182 of 184 



Page 183 of 184 



Page 184 of 184 




